
  Page 1 of 8 

 

 
 

RFP No. 1-12-C225 
Banking Services 

for the 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 

 
Questions and Answers 
 
Notice: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance. 
 
1. Our firm is extremely sensitive to requirements with maintaining protection of public 

funds. We are a qualified public depository in the District and believe that we can 
support MWAA's requirements. On Attachment 1, page 5, you are referencing 
accounts for Virginia, Fairfax County & Loudoun County.  Are those funds deemed 
public funds maintained under Virginia statute for public funds or the District? For 
instance, while they are with MWAA are they your funds for those jurisdictions or 
those jurisdictions' funds? 
 
Answer:  Once funds are delivered to The Authority, they are considered our funds and are 
not considered public funds. We keep them segregated for ease of reconciliation. 
 

2. Reference Attachment 03-Section 2: Customer Service & Transition Plan, Outline 
plans and procedures for fulfilling the manual and technical banking requirements.  
We are not sure how to respond to this question or what you are looking for here.  If 
possible, can you please rephrase the question? 
 
Answer:  Discuss your experience in opening new accounts and transitioning payments to 
an Oracle EBS system. 
 

3. Reference Section III, Price Schedule: Under Depository Services - Vault, #11 Vault 
Furnished Currency-Fed Standard Strap-per strap.   Can you provide the dollar 
amount of currency furnished monthly? 
 
Answer:  Parking contractors receive $3,000 to $6,000 daily, mostly in denominations up to 
$10.00 bills. 
 

4. Reference Attachment 01 - Statement of Work - Page 3 "Receipts" - Could the Airports 
Authority provide samples of the documents that are received in the lockbox, provide 
the city location of your post office box address and also provide the lockbox file 
formats for the receivables file received by MWAA? 
 
Answer:  Sample lockbox documents including PROPworks Configuration, Lockbox Payee 
Authorization and Lockbox Deliverable are posted as supplements to the solicitation. 
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5. Reference Attachment 01 - Statement of Work - Page 5 "Wire Transfers" - Does the 
Airport Authority send wire transfer payments directly to the bank via transmission or 
are these payments uploaded through your online information system? 
 
Answer:  Yes,  Accounts Payable wires are sent from the Oracle EBS system, but Treasury 
completes 10-12 wires per month, non AP related. 
 

6. In what format does the Authority's Oracle system upload ACH/Wire information and 
download reporting information (i.e., BAI2, CSV)? 
 
Answer:  ACH files are prepared in NACHA format; bank statements are in BAI2 format and 
wires are prepared in Domestic and SWIFT formats. 
 

7. On average, how much is the Authority's ACH origination file? 
 
Answer:  On average ACH file size varies between 4 KB to 12 KB. 
 

8. Will the Authority originate ACH via FTP/FTM transmissions? 
 
Answer: The Authority uses SFTP for file transmissions. 
 

9. Reference Dulles Corridor Controlled Disbursement Account--If the account will be 
automatically funded from the concentration account, what is the reason for early 
notification, 10 AM, of clearing checks?  Does this account receive preauthorized ACH 
debits? 
 
Answer: We require early notification to track cash flow in our Cash Worksheet for internal 
purposes.  This account does not receive preauthorized ACH debits. 
 

10. Reference Toll Road Depository--Is there a need for deposit reconciliation that allows 
for easy identification of currency deposits? 
 
Answer:  There is no need for deposit reconciliation. 
 

11. Reference Toll Road Depository--Is there a need to identify where the different 
deposits are being made? 
 
Answer:  No, Toll Road funds are deposited from the centralized counting room. 
 

12. Reference Toll Road Depository--Armored car deposit delivery vault: Will this be 
provided by your existing provider, as per Aviation Accounts, or do you expect the 
bank to offer a solution? 
 
Answer:  The armored car deposit delivery vault service is currently being provided so there 
is no requirement to offer a solution. 
 

13. Reference Toll Road Depository--Do you allow any ACH debits on this account? 
 
Answer:  We allow ACH debits to the Dulles Corridor Master account only. 
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14. Reference Toll Road Operating Account--What kinds of transactions does this 

account have? Does it have any disbursement activities? 
 
Answer: The Toll Road Operating Account is a holding account for funds to be disbursed 
throughout the month for Toll Road operations. It only has ACH transfers into the Master 
Account. 
 

15. Reference Toll Road Operating Account-- How is this account funded? Where are the 
overnight investment funds coming from? 
 
Answer:  The Toll Road Operating Account is funded from the Toll Road Depository account 
through the Master account. 
 

16. Reference Toll Road Operating Account--What is the average balance for this 
account? 
 
Answer:  $5-$7 million. 
 

17. Reference Federal Grant, State Account, Fairfax County and Loudoun County 
Accounts--How much do you keep in each individual sweep account? 
 
Answer:  The amount in each individual sweep account is dependent on funds received 
from our partners ranging from $100 million to zero. 
 

18. Reference Federal Grant, State Account, Fairfax County and Loudoun County 
Accounts--Do you have any specific or special reporting requirements for these 
accounts? 
 
Answer:  No, they handled as any other MWAA segregated bank account. 
 

19. What is your average per item volumes (ACH debits, checks paid, checks deposited, 
deposit tickets)? 
 
Answer:  Please refer to estimated item volumes listed on the price schedule. 
 

20. Reference Aviation Accounts--How open will you be to suggestions on how to amend 
existing account structure and its flow? 
 
Answer:  Any suggestions that add efficiency without affecting the required segregation of 
funds, and not adding costs not covered on the pricing sheets, are welcome. If the 
suggestions are not covered on the price schedule, please discuss your ideas, without 
pricing. 
 

21. Reference Aviation Concentration Account--What is the average balance on this 
account? 
 
Answer:  Overnight investment in the Aviation Concentration Account can be up to $50 
million. 
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22. Reference Controlled Disbursement Account--If the account will be automatically 

funded from the concentration account, what is the reason for early notification, 10 
AM, of clearing checks? 
 
Answer:   We require early notification to track cash flow in our Cash Worksheet for internal 
purposes.  This account does not receive preauthorized ACH debits. 
 

23. Reference Controlled Disbursement Account--Does this account receive 
preauthorized ACH debits? 
 
Answer:  This account does not receive preauthorized ACH debits. 
 

24. Reference Agent Cashier and Parking Contractors Accounts-Coins, currency, credit 
card receipts.  How does MWAA identify the deposits for each agent/ cashier?  Is this 
something that you would like to have? 
 
Answer:  Each airport has its own agent cashier and account.  We are not seeking a 
solution for this element. 
 

25. Reference Agent Cashier and Parking Contractors Accounts--Coins, currency, credit 
card receipts.   What is the difference between these two types of accounts in terms 
of: function, reconciliation, and management? 
 
Answer:  There is no difference between these two types of accounts in terms of function, 
reconciliation and management. 
 

26. Reference Agent Cashier and Parking Contractors Accounts--Coins, currency, credit 
card receipts.   Currently, there is an agent cashier account at Capital One Bank. Is 
this one of the two accounts mentioned on this RFP, or is it something completely 
different? 
 
Answer:  This is one of the accounts mentioned in the RFP. 
 

27. Reference Agent Cashier and Parking Contractors Accounts--Coins, currency, credit 
card receipts.  In the RFP, you mentioned armored car services are a separate 
contract not part of this RFP reference Attachment 01, page 2.  How do you expect 
change order service to be delivered, if not by armored car? 
 
Answer: The present armored car service will pick up from your vault for delivery to the 
required parties. 
 

28. Reference receipts-- Does this account receive preauthorized ACH debits? 
 
Answer:  No, the receipts account does not receive preauthorized ACH debits.  Deposits are 
made only with a sweep to Master account. 
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29. Reference payments--Will you consider ACH initiation for vendor payments so MWAA 
can gain control of these contractual payments? 
 
Answer:  We are not able to consider ACH initiation for vendor payments contractually at 
this time.  This will require revised or new contracts which will take place in the future.  
Currently, debit filters allow only authorized vendors to debit. 
 

30. Reference Section VII-2 15, Insurance-- Will MWAA allow us to obtain all insurance 
required under this contract through a program of self-insurance? 
 
Answer: Yes.  However, MWAA must be named as an additional insured on any applicable 
excess insurance over the self-insurance program. 
 

31. Reference Section VII-2 15, Insurance-- Would MWAA find it acceptable to have a 
minimal A.M. Best rating of A- or better? 
 
Answer: Yes. 
 

32. Reference Section VII-2 15, Insurance-- Is it acceptable to maintain liability limits of $2 
million while allowing for evidence of an additional $3 million in Umbrella excess 
coverage in order to satisfy the minimum requirements of $5 million under this RFP? 
 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

33. Reference Section VII-2 15, Insurance--The Fire Legal Liability is not applicable to the 
services provided by the bank; can the bank be exempt by this requirement? 
 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

34. Reference Section VII-15, 38, Order of Precedence--Will MWAA allow our agreements 
within the order of precedence? How would you envision reconciling our required 
agreements within MWAAs form of contract? Banks operate under various laws and 
regulations that are unique to the banking industry, national credit card association 
rules and homeland security requirements. Bank agreements have specific terms and 
conditions that are relative to the banking services that you have requested in the 
RFP and it contains required disclosures. The bank agreements set forth customary 
rights and responsibilities for the protection of all parties. We realize there may be 
certain required terms and conditions, including the RFP, you will have to have in any 
agreement you have with a service provider to incorporate and integrate those terms 
into the final agreement. 
 
Answer:  Any and all banking agreements agreed to by both parties will be incorporated by 
contract modification at the time of contract award. 
 

35. Reference Section VII-18, 47, Consent to Assignment-- With Federally chartered 
national banking associations, any successor institution must by law assume our 
rights and responsibilities. This is not dependent upon client agreement. Should it 
become necessary, banks reserve the right to make these business decisions in the 
best interest of its clients, and reserves the right to do so without the client written 
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consent. Further, the bank generally reserves the right to assign to an affiliate without 
consent. While a bank would certainly discuss with MWAA any potential assignment 
of the contract to an affiliate and would stipulate that any affiliate to which the 
contract is assigned would conform to the terms, conditions and requirements of the 
contract, will MWAA allow a bank to have the ability to assign the contract to another 
affiliate? 
 
Answer:  Contract assignment will only be allowed with Airports Authority approval. 
 

36. What is the targeted implementation date for this contract? 
 
Answer:  We Plan to award the contract in December 2012 with implementation to take 
place ASAP realizing the complexity of integration with Oracle. 
 

37. What if more than 1 line is needed to document additional fees that may apply to a 
service requested? 
 
Answer:  If possible, combine on that line. The purpose of having additional fees on the 
price schedule is to determine the expected cost per month to The Authority for banking 
services. 
 

38. How many checks are cashed by vendors/employees at the branch vs. deposited? 
 
Answer:  A cursory review shows less that 5% of checks are cashed at branches and most 
are deposited. 
 

39. Reference Section VII, Contract Provisions Section VII-1 Section 12, Contractor 
Personnel-- Would the Authority provide additional information about the type of 
investigation that will be required and the investigative forms? 
 
Answer:  Reference Amendment Two (2)—Section VII, Contract Provision 12, Contractor 
Personnel is hereby deleted in its entirety. 
 

40. Reference Section VII, Contract Provisions Section VII-2 Section 15, Liability 
Insurance-- Would the Authority be amenable with discussing modifications to 
Insurance Liability section of the agreement to achieve a mutually acceptable 
coverage?  Our evaluation included several differences that we believe provide the 
Authority with the coverage desired, but do not meet the specific language include 
here. We will include the specifics with our proposal, for future discussion, since 
attachments were not permitted here. 
 
Answer:  Yes, as long as the overall liability limits are met, alternatives will be considered. 
 

41. Reference Contract Provisions Section VII-12 Section 27, Key Personnel--Would the 
Authority be amenable to striking this term? 
 
Answer:  Reference Amendment Two (2)—Section VII, Contract Provision 27, Key 
Personnel is hereby deleted in its entirety. 
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42. Reference Section VII, Contract Provisions Several Sections-- The contract contains 
several provisions that are completely inapplicable to banking services and are more 
related to construction contracts.  Would the Authority permit the elimination of non-
applicable contract clauses? 
 
Answer:  Section VII – Contract Provisions which are inapplicable to Banking Services will 
not be enforced under this contract. 
 

43. Reference Section VII, Contract Provisions Several Sections--There are contractual 
requirements for banking services that are not included.  Would the Authority accept 
the inclusion of the bank standard Treasury Service Account Terms and applicable 
Service Terms?  We will include these documents as well as our recommended 
changes in our response. 
 
Answer:  See response to Question #34. 
 

44. Reference Section VII, Contract Provisions Section VI Section 31, Patent Indemnity-- 
Would the Authority consider modification to the language here that given that it is an 
unlimited indemnity for intellectual property infringement? We are not permitted to 
provide unlimited indemnity as written and it may not be vital to delivery of the 
services.  Alternatively, would the Authority consider some alternatives to IP 
Indemnity, such as a maximum cap of 1 year of fees?  We will provide specifics with 
our submission. 
 
Answer:  Reference Amendment Two (2)—Section VII, Contract Provision 31, Patent 
Indemnity for change in language. 
 

45. Is it possible to get a copy of the winning bid for this contract when awarded 
previously (per the Freedom of Information Act)? 
 
Answer:  Freedom of Information Act requests need to be addressed in a separate request 
to the Contracting Officer. 
 

46. Do the funds that are retained in the accounts/not invested need to be collateralized? 
 
Answer: Only if total funds in all accounts exceed $250,000, then only the portion over that. 
 

47. Reference attachment 01 page 3--Please confirm the make and model of the check 
scanner? 
 
Answer:  We currently do not have a check scanner and plan to procure one following 
contract award. 
 

48. For the lockbox, what company provides the courier services for delivering the 
paper?  Does MWAA pay for the service? 
 
Answer:  The Authority prefers electronic document delivery so will not pay for courier 
services. 
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49. Can you provide the details on the lockbox instructions for processing (i.e. what are 
the acceptable payees, dual sided images of remittance, correspondence imaging 
etc)? 
 
Answer:  Please see question #4. 
 

50. Can MWAA also provide a copy of the lockbox remittance and with the required data 
points that are keyed (i.e. customer #, address, amount etc)? 
 
Answer:  Please see question #4. 
 

51. What type of file format will Oracle accept (i.e. csv, .txt, BAI etc)? 
 
Answer:  Please see Question #6. 
 

52. Reference attachment 01 page 5, single control is permitted for all free form wires. 
Will MWAA accept a dual approval requirement for all wires for security reasons? 
 
Answer:  We want dual control on all freeform wires and the dual control on the wire 
template set-up. Single control for template wires is already in the system. 
 


